
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
AT KANSAS CITY 

STEVEN AND RUTH MITCHELL, 
and 

JUDITH L. PICKERILL, 

Plaintiffs, 

VS. 

RESIDENTIAL FUNDING COMPANY, 
LLC, 

RESIDENTIAL FUNDING MORTGAGE 
SECURITIES II, INC., 

jP MORGAN" CHASE BANK, N.A., AS 
q-'DT • qr"'•"l• 

BANK OF NEW YORK TRUST COMPANY, 
N.A., AS SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE, 

"•¥•TT 1•/IT•T•'•-q•g•'I•T 'T•DT •'•qp •'• 

HOMECOMINGS F•.L&NC!AL, LLC, 

HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION, 
iII, 

WACHOVIA EQUITY SERVICING LLC 
F/K/A HOMEQ SERVICING 
CORPORATION, 

MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC 
REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC., and 

JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AS 
SUCCESSOR BY MERGER TO BANK ONE, 
N.A., 

Defendants. 

Case No. 03-CV-220489 

Division 4 



THIRD AMENDED PETITION FOR DAMAGES 

The above-named plaintiffs state and allege the following for their Third Amended 

Petition in this cause: 

NATURE OF THE CLAIMS 

1. This action is brought by the plaintiffs on behalf of themselves and as a plaintiffs' 

class action for violations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loan Act with respect to Missouri 

second mortgage !oans that were originated by MORTGAGE CAPITAL RESOURCES 

CORPORATION (hereinafter "MCR"), a California corporation that has since filed bmakruptcy, 

but which second mortgage loans were sold and assigned to the following clefendants and which 

defendants are liable for the violations of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act as committed 

by MCR, their assignor and loan originator, and also for the violations committed by the 

following defendants in connection with such loans: RESIDENTIAL FUNDING COMPANY, 

LLC. (sometimes referred to as "GMAC-RFC"), RESiDENTiAL FU-NDING MORTGAGE 

SECURITIES II, INC. ("RFMS"), HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, LLC 

and JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Trustee and BANK OF NEW YORK TRUST 

COMPANY, N.A., as Successor Trustee (together "BNY") as the Owner Trustee and Indenture 

Trustee, respectively, and as representatives and agents of securitized trusts formed by GMAC- 

RFC and RFMS to hold the loans of the putative class members and that hold the loans of the 

named plaintiffs, and HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION III ("HOUSEHOLD"), and 

WACHOVIA EQUITY SERVICING, LLC. f/k/a HomEq Servicing Corporation ("HOMEQ"), 

MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC. ("MERS") and JP MORGAN 

CHASE BANK, N.A., as successor by merger to Bank One, N.A. ("BANK ONE"), all of which 
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defendants purchased or had assigned to them or their controlled subsidiaries or the trusts which 

they caused to be formed and/or for which they are trustees for the said Missouri second 

mortgage loans and which defendants also "charged" and/or "received" monthly payments •om 

the borrowers of the second mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, all in violation of 

the Missouri Second Mortgage Loans Act. This case also includes the wrongful and 

conspiratorial ettbrts of GMAC-RFC and Homecomings to procure second mortgage loans from 

hundreds of Missom:i homeowners because of the extreme profitability of such loans regardless 

of the legaiity of such loans and all in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act (§ 

408.231 et seq. RSMo) (•SMLA").. 

2. Defendants GMAC-RFC, RFMS, and their Securitized Trusts, WILMINGTON 

TRUST, BNY, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ and BANK ONE 

individually, and as representatives of a defendant class, all purchased loans made or originated 

by MCR or had assigned to them loans made or originated by MCR and now hold or previously 

held the hereinafter described second mortgage loans and/or have charged and/or received or 

now charge and/or receive the monthly payments from the borrowers, which illegal fees. together 

with the other closing costs were payable at the closing of such second mortgage loans and were 

included in the principal of such loans, and which illegal fees and charges were thereafter 

charged and/or received by the defendants as part of the monthly payrnents of such second 

mortgage loans. 

3. Plaintiffs are individual Missouri borrowers that seek redress on behalf of themselves 

and on behalf of a plaintiff class ("PLAINTIFF CLASS") against GMAC-RFC, RFMS, and their 

Securitized Trusts, WILMINGTON TRUST, BNY, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, 

HOMEQ and BANK ONE and the other defendants (including a defendant class) consisting of 



those entities that now hold or have held an&'or now charge and/or receive or have charged 

and/or received the illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the Missouri 

second mo•gage loans that are •,• •1,•,I•0• of this •o•,,, for ,,•,1o•;,,,,o of • •,•: •,/rt• 

including claims for monetary damages and injunctive relief. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

The Predatory and Fraudulent Lendin• Scheme In General 

4. Plaintiffs and the Plaintiff Class, all as more particularly alleged below, were the 

victims of a predatory lending scheme that charged them bogus and illegal fees and charges, 

together with charging high interest rates all as part of a scheme to make high-cost loans to 

Missouri borrowers, as well as borrowers across the country. Such bogus and illegal fees were 

unlawful under Missouri's SMLA and included illegal origination fees, loan discount fees, 

underwriting fees, processing fees, document preparation fees, attorneys' fees and other fees and 

charges contracted for by MCR and were payable to MCR and were thereafter charged by and 

received by the defendants, together with the illegal interest that were charged by and received 

by these defendants and all of which fees, charges and interest violate Missouri's SMLA. 

5. With respect to the loan origination fees, the loan discount charges, the underwriting 

fees, the processing fees and the document fees, such were paid to the originating lender, MCR 

and were not in fac• paid to a third party. Further, the attorneys' fees, regardless of to whom 

such were paid, were not permitted by Missouri's SMLA. 

6. The Missouri second mortgage loans at issue were and are "high-cost" loans under 

the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1602 and 1641 (hereinafter 

"HOEPA"). 
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7. GMAC-P•'C and RFMS, individually, and in connection with the securitized trusts 

that were created and formed by them, and through the securitized trusts' Owner Trustee, 

Wilmington Trust, and !ndenmre Trustee, BNY, purchased a substantial number of the loans at 

issue from MCR, thereby "stepping into the shoes of" MCR with respect to any liability, claims 

or defenses arising from the loan transactions pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1641(d)(1) and also 

pursuant to having "charged" and/or "received" such illegal fees and the resulting illegal interest, 

all in violation of § 408.233 RSMo Supp. 1998. 

8. HOUSEHOLD, HOMEQ and BANK ONE also purchased a number of the loans at 

issue from MCR, thereby "stepping into the shoes of" MCR with respect to any liability, claims 

or defenses arising from the loan transactions pursuant to i5 U.S.C. § i64i(d)(i) and aiso 

pursuant to having "charged" and/or "received" such illegal fees and the resulting illegal[ interest, 

all in violation of § 408.233 RSMo Supp. 1998. Plaintiffs have standing to include 

HOUSEHOLD and HOMEQ in this action on behalf of the members of the Plaintiff Class whose 

loans were purchased, directly or indirectly, from MCR, and which claims are juridically linked 

to those of the Representative Plaintiffs in that all of the loans were made by MCR to Missouri 

borrowers and the joinder of HOUSEHOLD, and HOMEQ as parties is permitted in order to 

afford all members of the class the same relief. 

9. MERS is n•:med in its capacity as a "nominee" for Defendant HOUSEHOLD. As 

nominee for Defendant HOUSEHOLD, MERS has been assigned certain rights and liabilities of 

Household and stands ir• the shoes of HOUSEHOLD. 

10. GMAC-RFC and RFMS, to the extent that they individually purchased such loans, 

thereafter sold and assigned the loans, in whole or in substantial part, to securitized trusts that 

they formed for that purpose. WILMINGTON TRUST is the Owner Trustee and BNY is the 



Indenture Trustee of these securitized trusts that continue to hold the subject Missou:d second 

mortgage loans. 

Defendants (as well as any other holder or •s•gne• of me o,,•,j,,,,•o"•';• l,l•oo,,,•,••r• -• second 

mortgage loans or their respective trustees) have "charged" to and/or "received" from the 

plaintiffs and the members of the Plaintiff Class those aforementioned, illegal fees and charges 

and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular § 408.233 RSMo 

Supp. 1998. 

12. Defendants were aware of the fraudulent conduct at issue and they individually and 

jointly participated in and acted in furtherance of said scheme and funded the said scheme by 

providing the financing necessary to continue the iilegai scheme, aii in its effort to feed an 

insatiable appetite for these high cost loans. 

13. MCR aggressively solicited residential home equity, mortgages across the country, 

including Missouri, all through a massive national direct mail marketing campaign. 

The Role Of Defendant GMAC-Residentia! Funding Corporation and ]Residential Funding 
Mortgage Securities II, Inco in this Scheme 

although not the exclusive purchaser, was a substantial purchaser of the Missouri second 

mortgage loans made or originated by MCR. 

15. Residential Funding Corporation was originally a subsidiary of Banco Mortgage 

Company, an affiliate of Northwestern National Bank, the predecessor of Norwest Bank. 

16. Initially, Residential Funding Corporation focused on buying and securitizing 

"jumbo" mortgages. "Securitization" as used herein and as meant in general terms refers to the 

process of consolidating loans (including but r•ot limited to residential mortgage loans) and/or 

packaging loans (not only mortgage loans) for sale as securities. 



17. Residential Funding Corporation, like many purchasers of mortgage loans, profited 

by not only purchasing and holding mortgage loans in its own inventory, but also generated 

significant profits by acting directly or through an affiliate, such as P•MS, to consolidate such 

mortgage loans into securitized pools and sell, as securities, interests in the pools. 

18. Several years ago, Residential Funding Corporation was acquired by General Motors 

Acceptance Corporation and became known as GMAC-RFC. 

19. Some of the most profitable loans that GMAC-RFC could either hold or securitize 

through its affiliates, such as RFMS, or their securitized trusts, were high cost home equity 

mortgage loans, including those commonly referred to as High Loan To Value ("HLTV':') loans. 

20. Thus GI'•kAC-RFC and RFMS turned to a number of originators of these high cost 

and often HLTV loans in order to generate substantial profits that were generated from either 

holding such loans in inventory or by securitizing such loans in securitization pools/trusts. 

21. MCR became a substantial source for GMAC-RFC's appetite for these high cost 

loans and in particular became a substantial source of high cost Missouri second rnortgage loans 

for GMAC-RFC. 

22. GMAC-RFC, individually, and through its affiliates, including RFMS, and the Owner 

Trustee, WILMINGTON TRUST, and indenture Trustee, BNY, of the securitized trusts, and 

HOMECOMINGS, as the servicer, directly participated in and conspired with MCR or its 

affiliated entities to participate in the fraudulent and predatory lending practices of MCR. Said 

defendants' scheme was made possible by said defendants' provision of the necessary funding 

and commitment to purchase substantially all of the loans generated by the MCR's lending 

activities and to expand the same so that GMAC-RFC could, in turn, expand its substantial 

profits from acquiring and/or securitizing these high cost loans through said defendants, 



including a substantial number of the Missouri second mortgage loans that are the subject of this 

action. 

THF• PARTIES 

The Plaintiffs 

23. Plaintiffs Steven and Ruth Mitchell (the "MITCHELLS") are lawfully married 

individuals who reside at 2109 NW Harbor Place, Blue Springs, Jackson County, Missouri 

64105. 

24. Plaintiff Judith L. Pickerill resides at 712 Edwin Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63122. 

The Defendants 

Holder and Charging/Defendants 

25. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDING COMPANY, LLC (sometimes referred to 

above and below as "GMAC-RFC") has previously been served with (or waived service of) 

process in this action. 

26. Defendant RESIDENTIAL FUNDING MORTGAGE SECURITIES II, INC. 

("RFMS") has previousIy been served with (or waived service of) process in this action... 

27. Defendant WILMINGTON TRUST COMPANY ("WILMINGTON TRUST") is 

named in its capacity as Trustee for the GMAC-RFC _a_nd RYMS-formed securitization trusts that 

owned and held the named plaintiffs' loans and that own and hold or held the lom•s of the 

members of the Plaintiff Class. WILMINGTON TRUST is the Trustee for the 2000-HII 

securitization trust the MITCHELLS' loan. Wilmington Trust has previously been served with 

(or waived service of) process in this action.. 

28. Defendant JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Trustee, and BANK OF NEW 

YORK TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Successor Trustee (together "BNY") are named in their 

8 



capacities as the Indenture Trustee and as the Successor Indenture Trustee for the GMAC-RFC 

and RFMS securitization trusts that own and hold the named plaintiffs' loans and that own and 

hold the loans of the members of the Plaintiff Class. BNY is the Successor Indenture Trustee for 

the 2000-HI1 securitization trust holding the MITCHELLS' loan. BNY has previously been 

served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

29. Defendant HOMECOMINGS FINANCIAL NETWORK, LLC ("Homecomings") is a 

Delaware corporation (and was known as "a GMAC Company") has previously been served with 

(or waived service of) process in this action. HOMECOMINGS is named as a defendant for 

having charged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff 

Class the illegal charges and fees and the rest•iting itiegai interest from the Missouri second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of charging and receiving 

and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and the resultin•g .illegal 

interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

30. Defendant HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION III ("Household") has 

previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. Household :is named 

as a defendant for having purchased and held the loans of members of the Plaintiff Class and for 

having charged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff 

Class the illegal charge, s and fees and the resulting illegal interest from the Missouri second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of charging and receiving 

and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal 

interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

31. Defendant Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS") has previously 

been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. MERS is named in its capacity as 

9 



nominee for HOUSEHOLD, having received an assignment of certain rights and liabilities of 

HOUSEHOLD. 

32. Defendant WACHOV!A EQUITY SERVICING, LLC. f/k/a HomEq Servicing 

Corporation has previously been served with (or waived service of) process in this action. 

HOMEQ is named as a defendant for having purchased and held the loans of members of the 

Plaintiff Class and for having charged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the 

members of the Plaintiff Class the illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest from 

the Missouri second mortgage loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of 

charging and receiving and continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and 

the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in vioia•:ion of § 

408.233 RSMo. 

33. JP MORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as successor by merger to Bank One, N.A. 

("BANK ONE") is also named as a defendant, since BANK ONE purchased and held-the loans 

of named Plaintiff Judith Pickerill and other members of the Plaintiff Class, and fer having 

charged and received from the named plaintiffs and from the members of the Plaintiff Class the 

illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest from the Missouri second mortgage 

loans that are the subject of this action, and which actions of charging and receiving and 

continuing to charge and receive such illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interest, 

all in violation of the SMLA and in particular, in violation of § 408.233 RSMo. 

The Doe Defendants 

34. Defendams DOE 1 tl•:ough 25 ("DOES 1-25") are the remaining owner, assignees 

(holders) and trusts, fur•ds and/or pools, and the trustees thereof, organized under various state 

laws, that are yet to be identified and named, and whose identity will become known• through 
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discovery and/or by requests made by plaintiffs or the members of the Plaintiff Class'. of their 

second mortgage servicers, after which such remaining assignees (holders) and trusts, funds and 

pools, and the trustees thereof, to the extent that they can be identified, will be added as 

individual and class representative defendants. 

The Holder/Recipient Defendants 

35. Each of the HOLDER AND CHARGING/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS and DOES 1 

through 25 (collectively, the "HOLDEtURECIPIENT DEFENDANTS"), together with the 

M,_.R, are "moneyed corporations" as that term is defined in § 516.420 RSMo because lender, •' • 

each of said defendants are assignees of the second mortgage loans; entities or association in 

form and in substance engaged in the business of buying loans (streams of money) that are used 

to collateralize certain notes or evidences of indebtedness that they sell to the public; as well as 

enterprises that are engaged in the business of using money to make money and each is •amed as 

a defendant both individually and in their capaci .ty as an owner and/or assignee (holder) of, 

and/or the trustee of a trust, fund or pool owning or holding, and/or the servicer of the Missouri 

second mortgage loans that were made by MCR, and as named defendants and representatives of 

every other member ef the Defendant Class (as hereinafter defined), which includes the 

remail•_ing owners and assignees (holders) of, and trustees of the trusts, funds and pools owning 

and/or holding, and servicers of the said Missouri second mortgage loans that were made by 

MCR. 

36. The Holder/Recipients Defendants, even if not holder recipient defendants of the 

Representative Plaintiffs, are juridically lir&ed by virtue of the fact that each are derivative 

holders and/or recipients of Missouri second mortgage loans made by MCR and are holders 

and/or recipients of the loans of either the Representative Plaintiffs or of members of the Plaintiff 
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Class and are joined herein necessarily and permissibly under Mo. Rule 52.04(a) so as to give 

full and complete relief to members of the Plaintiff Class as described, just as such relief is 

sought for the Representative Plaintiffs. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

37. This Court has jurisdiction over each of the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS 

since each violated Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act. In doing so, eac]• of the 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS transacted business, made contracts, committed torts 

mlu/o• used 
roll,wire •uuuns in Missouri, •-• 

•,• •,1 are assignees or nominees of such entities • 

or possessed an interest in real estate all located within the state of Missouri, and/or are subj ect to 

the service of process in this state, all as is more particuiariy alleged in this Petition. The 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS all have sufficient minimum contacts, and in fact, 

substantial contacts, with Missouri such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend 

traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT 

DEFENDANTS have purposefully obtained Missouri second mortgage loans through )4CR and 

its other loan originators, brokers and correspondents, and have purposefully charged and/or 

recelveu LIIIIaWIIAI 
5•es and charges "•---•-" 

Lvzl•,mi • 
Second 1V[ulLg•t•,c Act 

such that said defendants should reasonably anticipate being haled into court in Missouri to 

answer for the unlawful acts of MCR and their own unlawful acts. Defendants' scheme, built 

around the assignment and securitization of the second mortgage loans into pools, securitized 

trusts and the secondary market, is designed in substantial part to insulate the 

HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFEND, ANTS from being haled into Missouri courts to account for 

their loan originator' and loan correspondents' violations of Missouri's consumer protection 
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laws, including the SMLA. Missouri has a strong interest in providing a forum for its residents 

aggrieved by such schemes to violate its consumer protection acts. 

0o Additionally, defendants GMAC-RFC and RFMS are subject to the jurisdiction of 

this Court, each having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and, additionally, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo having 

engaged individually, and by virtue of being an assignee of the high-cost second mortgage loans 

and/or having also engaged in the following actions through its agents, subsidiaries or affiliates: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of making and purchasing 

numerous high cost Missouri second mortgage loans, by acting as a substantial 

source of the Pmnding for such second mortgage loans, and having charged and 

received illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation 

of Missouri law; 

(b) Made contracts within this state by virtue of its promoting and making ftlrough 

their assignor, MCR, numerous high cost second mortgage loans in this state; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of their violations of Missouri's 

SMLA mad their m•lawful contracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and the resulting illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of 

the Plaintiff Class, as more specifically set forth below; and 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being assignees (holders) or the trustees of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 
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trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Additionally, defendant HOMECOMINGS is subject to the jurisdiction of this Court 

having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or contacts with the 

state of Missouri, and, additionally, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo having engaged in the 

following actions: 

(a) Transacted business within this state by virtue of having charged and received 

illegal fees and charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of 

Missouri law; 

{.w'•'• tJormml•.,•• ;**•-• tortious a,.•*o "wltmn" *•-;s state by vi•ue of its violations "• •a.lSSO•,r•, •'• 

SMLA and its unlawful charging and receiving such illegal fees and the resulting 

illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees and charges; and the 

resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of the Piaintiff Class, as 

more specifically set forth below; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of its violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and its unlawful contracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and "the resulting illegal interests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and me:mbers of 

the Plaintiff Class, as more specifically set forth below 

(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 
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trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Additionally, defendants WILMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as the trustees of the 

GMAC-RFC and RFMS-formed securitized trusts, are subject to the jurisdiction by virtue of 

their own actions and the actions of MCR, GMAC-RFC, and RFMS as more pa•Xicularly 

described above and for which WILMINGTON TRUST •,•t •Nv stands in the shoes of each of 

these said defendants. 

0. Additionally, defendants HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ, BANK ONE are subject 

to the jurisdiction of this Court, having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic 

presence in or contacts with the state of Missouri, and, additionaiiy, pursuant to § 506.500 RSMo 

having engaged in the following actions individually or through its agents, subsidiaries, affiliates 

and/or nominees: 

Xa• Transacted business within •h•s state by virtue •f •r•hasin•, m•rne•rau• high cost 

Missouri second mortgage loans, by acting as a substantial source of the funding 

for such second mortgage loans, and having charged and received illegal fees and 

charges and the resulting illegal interest, all in violation of Missouri law; 

(b) Made contracts within this state by virtue of its promoting and making: through 

their assignor, MCR, numerous high cost second mortgage loans in this state; 

(c) Committed tortious acts within this state by virtue of their violations of Missouri's 

SMLA and its unlawful contracting for, charging and receiving of such illegal 

fees and the resulting illegai imerests and the continuing collection of illegal fees 

and charges and the resulting illegal interest from the plaintiffs and members of 

the Plaintiff Class, as more specifically set forth below 
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(d) Used real estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being assignees (holders) or the trustees of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of their 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 

trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans that are the 

subject of this action. 

0. Each of the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS is subject to the jurisdiction of 

this Court, either having a registered agent in and/or a continuous and systematic presence in or 

contacts with the state of Missouri, and/or pursuant to the provisions of §506.500 RSMo, having 

further: 

(a) Transacted business within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee •f 
2,, 

assignee of the Missouri second mortgage 

loans that are the subject of this action from MCR, by acti_n_g as a substantial 

source of the t•mnding for such second mo•gage loans, and/or by virtue of it being 

a holder of and/or a trustee of a holder of said second mortgage loans and 

collecting the benefits of said second mortgage loans from residents of this state; 

(b) Made contracts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee 

(holder) or the trustee of an assignee of MCR and/or said second mortgage loans; 

(c) Comrnitt.ed tortious acts within this state individually and/or by virtue of being an 

assignee (holder) or the trustee of an assignee of MCR and/or the: Second 

Mortgage Loans, and/or by virtue of its continuing to charge and receive the 

illegal charges and fees and the resulting illegal interests from the second 

mortgage loans that are the subject of this action; and 
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(d) Used reali estate situated in this state to secure the Missouri second mortgage 

loans individually and/or by virtue of being an assignee (holder) or the trustee of 

an assignee of MCR and/or the second mortgage loans, and/or by virtue of its 

continuing capacity as the beneficiary of the deeds of trust and mortgages, or the 

trustee for such beneficiaries, that secure the second mortgage loans thai are the 

subject of flais action. 

43. Venue is prolper in this. Court pursuant to the terms of § 408.562 RSMo because the 

named plaintiffs reside in this county and the transactions of the named plaintiffs complained of 

in this action occurred in this county and pursuant to § 508.010 RSMo because the causes of 

•,•,•n accruea In IP•lS county. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

44. As noted above, plaintiffs (sometimes collectively, the "REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAINTIFFS") bring this action individually, and as a ctass action on behalf of the statewide 

class of Missouri residential real estate owners or borrowers who obtained second mortgage 

loans from MCR. 

45. The "Second Mortgage Loans" that are the subject of this action are defined at 

§408.231 et seq. RSMo to mean "...a loan secured in whole or in part by a lien upon any interest 

in residemial real estate., created by a security instrument, including a mortgage, trust deed, or 

other similar instrument or document, which residential real estate is subject to one or more 

prior mortgage loans." 

46. "Residential real estate" is defined at § 408.231.3 RSMo, to rnean "... any real 

estate used or intended to be used as a residence by not more than four families 
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47. Finally, § 408.234.2 RSMo makes it illegal for a lender to take a security interest in 

any collateral other than residential real estate in connection with a Second Mortgage Loan. 

48. From and after six years prior to the filing of this action and through the present time, 

MCR •'made" Second Mortgage Loans to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other 

members of the Plaintiff Class, defined below. 

49. in each of the of the Second Mortgage Loans at issue, MCR received a promissory 

note from the REPR2ESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and from the various members of the Plaintiff 

Class (as hereinafter defined) and was named as the "Beneficiary" in a second mortgage deed of 

trust to secure the said Second Mortgage Loans. 

•un•a•eu •or and/or •'u. in cormectmn v•th *•'•°• Second Mo•gage Loans, MCR • • 

charged and/or received the above referenced illegal costs and fees which were payable at 

closing of the second mortgage loans, all in violation of Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act, 

which costs and fees included illegal loan origination fees, loan discount charges, underwriting 

fees, processing fees and document fees that were paid to the originating lender, MCR rand were 

not in fact paid to a third party. Further, the attorneys' fees, regardless of to whom such were 

paid, were not perrnitted by Missouri's SMLA. 

51. These unlaw•N1 fees and closing charges were payable by the borrower at closing and 

were contracted for .and thereafter charged and received by the said defendants by virtue of the 

fact that the said uniav•ful fees and closing charges were added to the principal balance of the 

second mortgage loan notes (§ 408.231.2 RSMo), and the resulting unlawful interest was 

charged on the entire principal balance of the notes, although no such interest is due u•tder such 

notes pursuant to § 408.236 RSMo. 

THIE MITCHELLS' SECOND MORTGAGE LOAN 
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52. On or about November 24, 1999 and in connection with the above alleged predatory 

lending scheme, MCR loaned the MITCHELLS a total loan of $21,000.00, to be repaid with 

interest at the yearly rate of 10.8;5% in consecutive monthly installments over a period of 15 

0. To secure repayment of their note, the MITCHELLS were required to and did execute 

a deed of trust for the benefit of MCR. The deed of trust granted MCR a security lien in 

Residential real estate as defined at § 408.231 RSMo and was subject to one or more prior 

mortgage loans. 

0. In connectio:n with this Second Mortgage Loan, MCR contracted for and charged 

and;or received (and the HOLDEPJREC!PiENT DEFENDANTS GMAC-P•C, P•'MS and 

Homecomings and Wilmington Trust and Chase Manhattan, as Owner Trustee and Indenture 

Trustee, later charged mad/or received) the following iiiegal fees and costs, none of wlqLich were 

interest, and some of which were in fact finder's fees: 

Loan Discount Fee to MCR 

Credit Report Fee to MCR 

Custodial[ Fee to Republic Bank 

Underv, witing Fee to MCR 

Processing Fee to MCR 

Federal Express Fee 

Document Preparation Review Fee to MCR 

Attorney's Fees to Johnson & Payne 

Wire Transfer Fee to Johnson & Payne 

735.00 

5O.OO 

35.00 

525.00 

525.00 

80.00 

420.00 

45O.OO 

3O.00 
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MS. PICKERILL'S SECOND MORTGAGE LOAN 

0. On or about December 29, 1999 and in connection with the above alleged predatory 

lending scheme, MCR loaned Judith Pickerill a total loan of $29,600.00, to be repaid with 

interest at the yearly rate of 11.6% in consecutive monthly installments over a period of 15 years. 

0. To secure repayment of their note, Ms. Pickerill was required to and did execute a 

uc•u•-• ul^•" Wast •^•1,,, +•'•l.•c benefit •,• lv•.•'•D The u•,•'• of trust •,•,•,• MCR a s•,•,,•y;÷" lien •n" 

Residential real estate as defined at § 408o231 RSMo and was subject to one or more prior 

mortgage loans. 

0. In connection w-ith this Second Mortgage Loan, MCR contracted for and charged 

and/or received (and Banc One Financial Services, Inc. and one or more DOES 1 tl-•:ough 25 

later charged and/or received) the tbllowing illegal fees and costs, none of which were: interest, 

and some of which were in fact finder's fees: 

Loan Discount Fee to MCR 

'-" •:• Fee to D •,•:• 

Unde: .rwr._iting Fee to MCR 

Processin•g Fee to MCR 

Federal Express Fee 

Document Preparation Review Fee to MCR 

Attorneys' Fees to Jonson & Payne, PLC 

Wire Transfer Fees to Jonson & Payne LLC 

1,036.00 

592.00 

592.00 

80.00. 

296.00, 

450.00 

30.00 
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CLASS ACTION FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
MISSOURI'S SECOND MORTGAGE LOANS ACT 

Plaintiff Class Action Allegations 

58. This action is properly brought as a plaintiff class action under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3). 

The Class consists of all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

• 
Those borrowers that obtained Second Mortgage Loans on Residential Real Estate 
from MCR, all within the meaning of Missouri's Second Mortgage Lo•ts Act (§ 
408.231 et seq. RSMo); and 

• That as part of that Second Mortgage Lom•s, MCR and the defendants herein, 
contracted for, charged and/or received or Plaintiffs were charged, contracted for or 

paid, and an entity received, the following types of fees: 

WIIIC•'I • A Loan Discount Fee conu:acrea for and payable to MCR and was 

thereafter charged by and paid to the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS; 

® An Underwriting Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was 

thereafter charged by and paid to the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS; 

® A Processing Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was thereafter 
charged by and paid to the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS; 

® A Document Preparation Fee contracted for and payable to MCR and which was 

thereafter charged by a_r•d paid to the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS. 

,, Other charges or fees that were in excess of those that were permitted or were not 
permitted under § 408.233 RSMo and were contracted for, charged and/or 

59. The Plaintiff Class includes persons who took such Missouri Second Mortgage Loans 

within six years next before the filing of this action or those persons who originally took a MCR 

Missouri second mortgage loan and who were charged or who paid such, fees and interest on 

such loans within the six years next before filing of this action. (+'THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS"). 
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60. The Plaintiff Class also includes persons who were "charged" or who paid those 

above fees or interest on the said loans within six years next before filing of this action. 

0. The particular members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are capable of 

being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The members of THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS ,are readily identifiable from the information and records in the 

lv•R, the raU•L,r•P,•r,r,t•lrm1•T • •lu/ur •cr•DA• 
• • 

and/or "• possession or control •,_. •,•,•, 
Ol ui• 

representatives or se•icing agents of each. 

0. THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS members ae so numerous that individual 

joinder of all members is impractical. This allegaion is based on the fact that MCR made 

extensive Second Mo•g.age Loans in Missouri tbxoughout this period. 

0. There are questions of law and 

predominate over any questions affecting 

Mw• •AGr• •S •m•, m 
fa-'•t, *'-m•- w•:ongs 

fact common to the Class, which questions 

only individual mernbers of THE 

buli•i•U •luu iem•ulgb sOU uy 
the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS are identical, the only difference being the exact monetary amount to which each 

member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is entitled. The principal common issues are: 

® 
..Whether MCR vioiated §§ 408.231 et seq. RSMo by charging the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS the 

fees and charges described above; 

• 
Whether MCR and the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as 

a defendant class as defined below) are barred under the provisions of § 408.236 

RSMo from recovery of any interest under these Second Mortgage Loans, and 
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whether they' are liable to return all past interest illegally received and should be 

enjoined from receiving any future interest; and 

• 
Whether MCR and the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as 

a defendant class) are liable, in addition to the other civil remedies or penalties, for 

actual damages, together with punitive damages and attorneys fees pursuant to 

§408.562 RSMo. 

64. The REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS' claims are typical of those of the members 

of the Class and are based on the same legal and factual theories. 

65. The REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS will fairly and adequately represent and 

protect the interests of the SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. They have suffered substantial 

economic injury in their own capacity from the practices complained of. They have retained 

counsel experienced in handling class actions, and actions involving unlawful commercial 

practices. Neither REP1•SENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS nor their counsel have any co_n_flicti•_g 

interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action. 

66. Certification of a plair•tiff class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is appropriate as to the 

HOLDER/RECiPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class), in that the 

common questions predominate over any individual questions pertaining to individual members 

of the Class, and a plaintiff class action is superior to any other available metl•ods for the fair and 

efficient adjudication of this controversy. A plaintiff class action will cause an orderly and 

expeditious administration of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS' claims and economies of 

time, effort and expense will be fostered, and unifom•ity of decisions will be insured. Moreover, 

the individual class members are likely to be unaware of their rights and not in a position (either 

through experience or financially) to commence individual litigation against the likes of GMAC- 
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RFC, RFMS, HOMECOMINGS, HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ and BANK ONE and the 

other HOLDEWRECIPIENT DEFENDANTS• 

Defendants' Liability Under Missouri's Second Mortgage Loans Act 

67. Each of the loans that MCR made to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and 

members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS constituted a "Second Mortgage Loan" 

68. § 408.233 RSMo provides in pertinent part as follows: 

1. No charge other than that permitted by section 408.232 shall be directly or 

indirectly charged, contracted :for or received in connection with any 
Second Mortgage Loan, except as provided in this section: 

*** 

(3) Bona Fide closing costs paid to third parties, which shall include: 

(a) Fees or premiums for title examination, title insurance or similar 

purposes including survey; 

,,b) Fees for preparation of a deed, settlement statement, or ore<,_ 

(c) Fees for notarizing deeds and other documents; 

(d) Appraisal fees; and 

(e) Fees for credit reports 

*** 

(5) A nonrefundable origination fee not to exceed five percent of the 
principal... (two percent prior to August 28, 1998). 

69. MCR, GMAC-P•C, tG•MS, \•,•LMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as Owner Tpastee 

and Indenture Trustee of the GMAC-RFC and RFMS-formed securitized trusts, 

HOMECOMINGS, and BANK ONE violated § 408.233 RSMo as such relates to the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS' loan and together with HOUSEHOLD, MERS, HOMEQ 
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and the other HOLDEWRECIPIENT DEFENDANTS as it relates to the members of the 

SECOND MORTGAGE. CLASS by engaging in the following acts, methods or practices: 

• 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, nonrefundable origination 

fees not allowed by and/or in excess of what fees were allowed by § 408.233.1 (5); 

• 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, Discount Fees not allowed by 

§ 408.233.1 RSMo; and 

° 
Charging and/or receiving, either directly or indirectly, other closing fees amd costs 

70. As a result of such violations, § 408.236 RSMo provides as follows: 

Any person violating the provisions of sections 408.231 to 4.08.237 shall be barred from 

recovery of any interest on the contract, except where such violation occurred either: 

(1) As a result of an accidental and bona fide error of computation; or 

(2) As a result of any acts done or omitted in reliance on a written interpretation of 

the provisions of sections 408.231 to 408.240 by the division of finance. 

71. The conduct of MCR and the resulting statutory violations described above as such 

relates to all of the defendants, arid each of them, did not occur as a result of an accidental and 

rc•m•,c on any bona •* of any done or tree en'or of COmpmm1on or as a •cbu• 

gov,•rnm a] but said oon•,-'• was, instead, intomi•l, willfi,1, wanton rand 

malicious, or otherwise showed a complete indifference to •d a conscious disregard of the 

rights of the •P•SENTATIVE PLA•TIFFS •d every other member of THE SECON• 

MORTGAGE CLASS. 

72. As the purchasers and/or assignees •d holders or as trustee for the assignees and 

holders of the notes and deeds of trust given under the Second Mo•gage Loans by the 

•P•SENTATIVE PLA•TIFFS •d every other member of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 
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CLASS, the HOLDER/ILECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, as 

hereinafter defined) are liable to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE SECOND 

MORTAGE CLASS, just as MCR is liable to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. 

73. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defen&mt class, 

as hereinafter defined) ave iiabie to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAI•,•TiFFS and THE SECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS t•3r all interest that they have collected or hereinafter will collect from the 

Second Mortgage Loans, and any such interest collected after the date of the filing of tln•is action 

shall be additional evidence of the willful and malicious nature of and conscious disregard of the 

and as a defendant class, as hereinafter defined). 

74. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (individually, and as a defendant class, 

as hereinafter defined) and each of them should be forever barred and enjoined under § 408.236 

RSMo from collecting or recovering any interest on the Second Mortgage Loans of the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS for the reasons set out above. 

,5. § 408._ 62 RoMo provides as follows: 

In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided for by law, any person 
who suffers any loss of money or property as a result of any act, method or 

practice in v•oiadon of the provisions of sections 408.100 to 408.561 may bring 
an action in the circuit court of the county in which any of the defendants reside, 
in which the plaintiff resides, or in which the transaction complained of occurred 
to recover actual damages. The court may, in its discretion, award punitive 
damages and may award to the prevailing party in such action al•orney's fees, 
based on the amount of time reasonably expended, and may provide such action 
a•orney's fees, based on the amount of time reasonably expended, and may 
provide such equitable relief as it deems necessary and proper. 
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76. As a result of the statutory violations described above, each of the 

REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS suffered a loss of money or property in that they were charged and paid and/or became 

obligated to pay fees, charges and costs in amounts greater than those allowed by Missouri law 

and were charged interest in violation of Missouri taw. 

77. The conduct of MCR (and the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS by virtue of 

their status as assignees or trustees for the assignees) and the resulting violations of iMissouri 

law, were mtemiunm, willful, wanton --• -'•+• 
m•u 

malicious, or other-arise showed a •omp• 

indifference to or a conscious disregard of the rights of each of the REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAFNTiFFS and the other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, including, 

without limitation, the fact that defendant GMAC-RFC and RFMS, individually, and 

WILMINGTON TRUST and BNY, as trustees over certain trusts holding loans originated by 

MCR and consolidated by GMAC-RFC, RFMS, HOMECOMINGS and BANK ONE, all as such 

relates to the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS 

MORTGAGE CLASS and HOUSEHOLD, MERS, 

and other members of the SECOND 

and HOMEQ, as to members of the 

•mereb• after they •- •bOi•u ivl•RTG•-•mz t•LAS•, have commu•u'-': • to •cw COII•L LIIC 

violations of Missouri law, therefore for that •d the other reasons set foAh herein the 

•P•SENTATIVE PLA•TIFFS •d THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS •e entitled to 

p•itive damages against the defend•ts •d each of them in such anaount as is fair and 

reasonable to punish defendants and to deter deSendants •d others from like conduct. 
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Defendant Class Action Allegations 

78. This action is also properly brought as a defendant class action under Mo. Rule 

52.08(b)(3). The defendant class ("THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE (;LASS") 

consists of all persons who satisfy the following criteria: 

• 
Those persons or entities or their trastees that have held or now hold, by virtue of 

transfer or assignment or otherwise (including acting as nominee or trustee of such 

holder or assignee), the Second Mortgage Loans of the REPRESENTATIVE 

PLAINTIFFS or THE SECOND Mt)RTGAGE CLASS; or 

• 
Those persons or entities that have "charged" or "received" the monthly payments 

from the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS or THE SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS, which monthly fees include the illegal charges and resulting illegal interest 

by virtue that such fees were financed as part of the principal of the Second Mortgage 

L,•-• (c•c•ll•c, lv•Iv "THE 13FFFNDANT ,qF,•ONI-) MO12TGAGF, •l ASS") 

79. The specifically named HOLDER/P•C!PIENT DEFENDANTS and each of them, are 

the REPRESENTATIVE DEFENDANTS of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS. 

80. The particu!s• members of m•l• I•FENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are 

capable of being described without difficult managerial or administrative problems. The 

members of Tt-IF, 13EFENrlANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS are readily identifiable from 

the information and records in the possession or control of MCR and/or the representatives or 

servicing agents of the Second Mortgage Loans or the assignees or holders (or their trustee(s)) of 

such Second Mortgage ]Loans. 
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81. Upon infon•Lation and belief, THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS 

members are so numerous that individual joinder of all members is impractical. This allegation 

is based on the fact that MCR made extensive Second Mortgage Loans in Missouri throughout 

this period and those loans have since been assigned to a number of mortgage trusts or pools and 

may thereafter have been reassigned. 

'• •'•" uestions and fact to 
u. 11Jcl• m-e q ..•-1 T•r• DEFENDANT 

MORTGAGE CLASS which questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual 

members of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and, in fact, the wrongs 

alleged against THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS and remedies sought by 

m_ REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and the other members of • me SECOND MORTGAGE 

CLASS against the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS are identical, the only diifference 

w•c• DEFENDANT is liable being the exact mu•c• amount to .,.; 1. •.•1• l_lF-•l BED/lI•lS'(TIDI15'7•IT 

•u m• 
respective •u•_. of THE c•n •TP.• CLASS •ount 

that should be ba•ed, enjoined and ret•ed. The principal common issues ae: 

• •ether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable as a result of 

MCR's violations of Missouri's Second Mo•gage Lo•s Act •d/or whether THE 

DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is entitled to asse• any defenses 

such violations. 

provisions of { 408.236 RSMo from the recovery of any interest under these Second 

Mo•gage Loans and whether they are liable to ret• all past interest illegally 

received and should be enjoined from receiving tony •mre interest; •d 
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• 
Whether THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS is liable, in addition 

to the other civil remedies or penalties, for actual damages, together with punitive 

damages and attorneys fees pursuant to § 408.562 RSMo. 

0. The HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS' defenses of THE DEFENDANT 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS (which defenses are denied) are typical of those of the 

individual HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS and will be based on the same legal and 

factual theories• 

•-•,^ T,,•T •,.nr, •,n,•mmNT r•n•'n•,Tr• ^xTTe m falrly and adequately represent 

protect the interests of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS. They have in the 

past and will undoubtedly in this action retain counsel experienced in defending class actions and 

actions involving unlawful cornrnercial practices. Said defendants do not, based upon 

information and belief, have any interests which might cause them not to vigorously defend this 

action• 

0. Certification of a defendant class under Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3) is appropriate as to 

THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS in that common questions predominate 

over amy p g •u 

defendant class action is superior to any other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy. A defendant class action will cause an orderly and expeditious 

administration of THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS defenses, if any, and 

economies of time, effort and expenses will be fostered and uniformity of decisions will be 

insured. 
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Prayer fl•r Relief 

WHEREFORE, the REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS, individually, on behalf of 

themselves and all members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, pray for judgment against 

the HOLDER/RECIPIENT DEFENDANTS (including GMAC-RFC, RFMS, WILMINGTON 

TRUST and BNY, as Owner Trustee and ]indenture Trustee of the GMAC-RFC and RFMS- 

l•im•u 
• • •wl•l•:':• trusts, •ra•/m•c•rM••,_,•,•,-,•**• 

•,, 
HOUS•C• r•, MERS, •M•MFQ, and BANK 

ONE) •d THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, jointly •d severally, as 

follows: 

• For an order ce•i•ing that this action may be maimained as a plaintiff class action 

,md• Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3), •Dpointing the F•e•ENTATIVE PLAIN FiFFS and 

their comasel to represent THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, •d directing that 

reasonable notice of this action be given to all other members of THE SECOND 

• For • order ce•i•ing that this action may be maintained as a defender class under 

Mo. Rule 52.08(b)(3), appointing the HOLDE•CIPIENT DEFENDANTS to 

represent THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, and directing that 

reasonable notice of this action be give• tO all other •e•bers of THE DEFENDANT 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

• For a pe•anent injunction enjoining the HOLDEP• •NT DEFENDANTS 

and THE DEFENDANT SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, together with their 

officers, directors, employees, agents, p•tners or representatives, successors; •d a•y 

•d all persons acting in conce• from directly or indirectly engaging in the •ongN1 

acts and practices described abov• (including the charging or receipt of any future 
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interest in connection with the Second Mortgage Loans that are the subject of this 

action), all :for the benefit of the R•PRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS and THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

For an order directing disgorgement or restitution against each defendant, jointly and 

severally, as to each REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF and each member of THE 

SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS, that cnntrn•t•cl for, charged or received the 

aforesaid illegal charges and fees and the imposition of an equitable constructive trust 

over such a•nounts for the benefit of the REPRESENTATIVE PLAIN I II?FS and 

other members of THE SECOND MORTGAGE CLASS; 

A judgment of monetary damages against each defendant, jointly and severally, as to 

each REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF and each member of THE SECOND 

t•a• for, charg•H received the aforesaid illegal 
•v•,•xl •Jm.•J_• 

CLASS, •" + contracted 

• "• •'• including "•* •'"• •, prohibited or excess fees, but also jointly 

and severally for •" interest that has been •,,•,-,*,'o,'•,•,•,•. for, charged or received by each 

of the defendants individually and as members of THE DEFENDANT •.,ECOND 

MORTGAGE CLASS as to each 

R•PRESENTAT!VE PLAINTIFFS 

•vIORTGAGE CLASS. 

of the plaintiffs, including THE 

as members of THE SECOND 

For a juugment of punitive 
,•o•,•.• 
"• against each of the defendants in a sum that __i• 

fair and reasonable; 

For reasonable attorneys' fees as provided by law and statute; 

For pre-and-post judgment interest as provided by law in amount according to proof 

at trial; 



• 
For an award of costs and expenses incurred in this action; and 

• 
For such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary and proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

WALTERS BENDER STROHBEHN & 
VAUGHAN, P.C. 

By 
R. F/r•/d'erick Walter; Mo. Bar 25069 

j. •i•nae• Vaugh• Mo. Bar 
D•vid M. Skeens -Mo. Bar 35728 
Kip D. •ch•ds Mo. Bar 39743 
Ga•e• M. Hodes Mo. B• 50221 

12th & Baltimore 
P.O. Box 26188 
Kansas City, MO 64196 
(8i6) 42i -•ZU 
[0 •h •o•u) 421-4747 •c•;• 

Ai i 
•,RNE •. ,JR PLAINT!• FS AND CLASS 

CO•SEL 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

It is hereby certified that a copy of the above and foregoing document was mailed this 
day of July 2007, to: 

Daniel McClain 
Randolph Willis 
Rassmussen Willis Dickey & Moore, LLC 
9200 Ward Parkway, Ste. 310 
Kansas IVlk) bl•y, 114 
(816) 960-1669 
Attorneys for Defendants Residential Funding Corporation n/k/a Residential Funding Company, 
LLC, Residential Funding Mortgage Securities II, Inc., JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as Trustee 

and Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Successor Trustee, Wilmington Trust Co., 
Homecomings Financial Network, inc. rdk/a Homecomings Financial Network, LLC and 

Defendant JP Morgan Chase Bank:, N.A. as successor by Merger to Bank One, N.A. 

Todd W. Ruskamp 
Shook, Hardy & Bacon t, LrT, 
2555 Grand 
Kansas City, Missouri 64108 
(8i6) 474-6550 
Attorneys for Defendant Househoid Finmnce 
Re stration •yst•mb, me. 

•,e• •ronlc •_•orporauo• u, 
and Mortgage e'• 

Scott W. Martin 
Husch & Eppenberger, LLC 
1200 Main, Suite 2300 

r,•ansas •lt¥, l•bbOut• 
(816) 421-4800 
Attorneys %r Defender Wachovia Equity Se•icing LLC ff•a HomEq Servicing Co•oraion 
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